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BEfORE THE HEARlljGS CLERK 
UN ITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTIOi'f-A:OEf'I<!IVGION 10 

IN THE MATTER Of: ) 
) 

Dyno Nobel. Inc. ) Docket No. EPCRA 10-2009-0205 
) 

Deer Island, Oregon ) Consent Agreement and Final Order 
) 

Respondent . ) 
) 
) 

<. 

l. AUTHORITY 

t .1. This Consent Agreement and Final Order ("CAFO") is issued under the authority 

vested in (he AdminislralOr of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA" ) by Section' 

325 of the Emergency Planning and Community Right-ta-Know Act (" EPeRA" or "[he Act"), 

42 U.S. c. § 11045, and Section 109 oflhe Comprehensive Environmental Response, 

Compensation and Liability Act C'CERCLA"), 42 U.S.C. § 9609. The Ad rruni strntor has 

delegated the au thority 10 issue the Final Order contained in Part V of this CAFO to the Regional 

Adm inistrator of EPA Region 10, who in turn has redelegated this authority to the Regional 

Judicial Officer. 

1.2. In accordance with Section 22.13(b) of the "Consolida(ed Rules of Practice 

Governing (he Adminislrali ve Assessmenl of Civil Penalties," 40 C.F.R. Part 22, EPA hereby 
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issues and Dyno Nobel, Inc. ("Respondeht\J) hereby agrees to issuance of the Final Order 

con tained in Part V of thi s CAFO. 

II. PRELlMrNARY STATEMENT 

2.1 . In ,ccordance with 40 C.F.R . §§ 22.1 3(b) and 22.45(b). issuance of thi s CAFO 

commences th is proceeding, wh ich will conclude when the Final Order contained in Part V of 

this CAFO becomes d reclive. 

2.2. Respondent owns and operates a facilit y located at 63149 Columbia Highway, 

Deer Island, Oregon (" the Fac ility"). 

2.3 . Respondent manufactures ammonia and nitric acid at the Facility. 

• < 
2.4 . A concise statement of the factual bases for ruleging violations of the Act, 

together with specific references to the provisions o f the Act and implementing regulations 

Respondent is alleged to have vio lated. appears in Part m of thi s CAFO. 

TIl. ALLEGATIONS 

3. 1. Section 103(.) of CERCLA. 42 USc. § 9603(.), requires the person in ch.rge of 

a facility to immediately not ify the National Response Center ("NRC") as soon as he or she has 

knowledge of a release of a hazardous substance from such facility in an amount equal to or 

greater than (he reportable quantily ("RQ").

3.2. Section 304(a) and (b) of EPCRA . 42 U.S .c. § 11004(.) and (b) . require thai if. 

facilit y at which hazardous chenticals are produced, used, or stored releases an RQ of an 

ex tremely hazardous substance and [he release requires , or occurred in a manner thai wou ld 

require. notice under Section W3(a) of CERCLA, 42 V.S.c. § 9603(a), the owner or operator of 
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the facility must immedi ately notify the ~tate Emergency Response Commission ("SERC" ) of 

any Slate likely to be affec ted by the release and the Local Emergency Planning Commillee 

("LEPC") for any area li ke ly (0 be affected by the re lease. 

3.3. Under Section 101 (21) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C § 9601(2 1), and Section 329(7) of 

EPCRA, 42 U.S .C § 11 049(7), "person" means, among other things, any corporation. 

3.4. Under Section 101 (9) of CERCLA, 42 U.S. C. § 960 1(9), "faci lity" means , among 

other thi ngs. any building. structure. insraJiat ioo, storage container. equipment or any site or area 

where a hazardous substance has been deposited, stored, disposed of, or placed, or otherwise 

come to be located. 

3.5. Under Section 329(4) of EPCRA, 42 u.s .e, § 11049(4), "faci lity" means all 

bui ldings, equipment, structures, and other stationary items that are located on a single si te or on 

contiguous or adjacent sites and which are owned or operated by the same person (or by any 

person which controls , is controlled by. or under COIlUTIon control with, such person). 

3.6. Under Section 101(22) of CERCLA, 42 USC § 960 1(22) , "release" means any 

spilling, leaking, pumping, pouring , emitting, emptying, discharging, injecting, escaping, 

leaching. dumping or disposi ng into the environment. 

3.7. Ammonia is a CERCLA "hazardous substance," 40 C.ER. § 302.4 , and an 

"ex tremely hazardous substance" under Section 302 of EPCRA, 42 U.S .C § 11002. The RQ is 

100 pounds, as indicated at 40 C F.R. Pan 355, Appe ndix A, and 40 CF.R. § 304.2 , with a 

min imum th reshold level of 500 pounds, as provided in 40 c.F. R. Part 370. 
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3.8. Under Section 325(c) of EPCRA. 42 U.S.C § 11045(b). EPA may assess a civil 

penalty of up to $25.000 for each day of violation of Section 304 of EPCRA. 42 U.S.c. § 11004 . 

Under Seclion 109 ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.c. § 9609, EPA may assess a c ivil penalty of up to 

$25,000 per day of violation of Sect ion 103 of CERCLA, 42 U.S.c. § 9603 , The Debt 

Collection Impro vement Act of 1996, 31 V.S,c. § 3701 . and its implementing regulations at 42 

C.F.R . Part \9, increased these statutory maximum penalties to $32,500 per day of violation 

occurring after March 15 ,2004. 

3.9. Respondent is a corpQration incorporated in the state of Delaware. 

3.10. On September 29, 2008. the facility released approximately 448 pounds o f 

<. 
ammonia to the atmosphere. 

3.11. The fac ility managers knew of the release at approximately 9:41 p.m. on 

September 29,2008, 

3.12. The release was likely to affect the States of Oregon and Washington. 

3. 13. The facility managers did not notify the NRC, the Oregon and Washington 

SERes and the Cowlitz County and Clark County LEPCs of the release until approximalely 8:30 

a.m. on Seplember 30, 2008, approximate ly 11 hours after the release occurred . 

IV. CONSENT AGREEMENT 

4 .1. Respondent admils the jurisdictional allegalions contained in Part 1II of this 

CAFO. 

4.2. Respondent neither admits nor denies the specific fact"Ual allegations contained in 

Part 1II of thi s CAFO. 
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4,3. Respondent expressty walves any rights to,contesl the <JlJegations and to appeal 

the Final Order contained herein, 

4.4. The provisions of this CAFO shaH bind Respondent and its agents, servants, 

employees, successors and assigns, 

4.5. Except as provided in Paragraph 4.10, each party shall bear its own costs in 

bringing or defending Ihis action, 

46. Based: on Respondeni's wHlingness iO settle this maHer without litigation, the 

nature of the violations, Respondent's agreement to perform a Supplemental Environmental 

Project ("SEP"), and o1her relevant factors, and in accordance with the Enforcement Response 

Poi;cy for SeCtions .104, 31 j and 312 ofthe Emergency PUmmng and Comnnmirj R{ghHo~Kno't,' 

Act ami Section 103 of!he Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Uabilit'i 

Act, EPA has determined and Respondent agrees that an appropriate penalty to seu1e this action 

is 517.000, of which $3,400 constitutes payment for the alleged CERCLA violation and $13,600 

constit1.ltes payment ror the alleged EPCRA violations. 

4,7" Respondent consents to the issuance of the Final Order reciced herein and to 

payment of lhe penalty cited in Paragraph 4,6 within 30 days of ~he effective date of the Final 

Order. 

4,8. Payment under this CAFO shaH be made by cashier's: check or certified check, 

payable to the order of "U.S. Treasury" and shall be delivered lo the foil owing addresses; 
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( i) The EPCRA ponioo of lh~ penally ($ 13,600) shall be mailed 10: 

U .S. Environmental PrOlection Agency 
Fines and Penalties 

Cincinnati Finance Cenler 

PO Box 979077 

51. Louis, MO 63197-9000 

(ii) The CERCLA ponion of Ihe penally ($3,400) shall be mailed 10: 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Superfund Payments 
Cincinnati Finance Center 

PO Box 979076 

SI. Louis, MO 63197-9000 


Respondent shall note on each check the title and docket number of this case. 

" 4.9. Respondent shall submit a photocopy of the check described above to the 

foll owing individuals: 

Regional Hearing CJerk 
U.S, Env ironmental PrOlection Agency 
Region 10 
L200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 900 
Mail Slap ORC-IS8 

Sean Ie, Washington 9810l 


Suzanne Powers 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Region 10 
Washington Operations Office 
300 Desmond Drive SE, Suite 102 
Lacey, Washington 98503 

4.10 Should Respondenl fail 10 pay Ihe penalty assessed by th is CAFO in full by its 

due date. (he entire unpaid balance of penally and accrued interest sha ll become immedialely due 

and owing. Should such a failure 10 pay occur, Respondent may be subject 10 a civil aClion 
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under Section § 325(f) of EPCRA, 42 U.S .c. § 11045(f), to coliect any unpaid penalties, together 

with interest, handling charges and nonpayment penailies, as set forth below. 

4 .11. Should Respondent faille pay the penall y assessed by this CAFO in full by ilS 

due dale. Respondent shall also be responsible for payment of the following amounts: 

(a) Interest. Any unpaid portion of the assessed penalty shall bear interest at the 

rate established by the Secretary of the Treasury pursuant to 31 U.S.c. § 3717(a)(I ), from the 

effective date of Lhe Final Order contained herein, provided, however, that no interest shaH be 

payable on any portion of the assessed penalty that is paid within 30 days of the effective dale of 

the FioaJ Order contained herein. 

(b) Handling Charge. Pursuant to 3 1 U.S·C. § 37 17(e)( I), a monthly handling 

charge of $ t 5 sha ll be paid if-any portion of (he assessed penalty is more than 30 days past due. 

(c) Non~ayment Penalty. Pursuant to 31 U.S.c. § 3717(e)(2), a nonpayment 

penalty of 6% per annum shall be paid on any portion of the assessed penalty that is more than 

90 days past due, which nonpayment penalty shall be calcula!ed as of the date the underlying 

pena lty fi rst becomes past due. 

4.12. Respondent shall impleme nl and complete a SEP thaI consists of I) the purchase 

of four laptop computers for use in Columbia River Fire & Rescue emergency response vehicles; 

and 2) the purchase and installation an ammonia monitoring system at all major release points at 

the Facility to provide immediate alarms in the event of a release. The SEP includes the 

components set fonh at Appendix A. The SEP shall be implemented and completed within 90 

days of the effecti ve dale of this CAFO, in accordance with all provisions described in this 
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Consent Agreement ReSpO!ldent agrees that the SEP is intended to improve e::neJ'geJlcy 

management by allowing a more immediate and effective response in the event of an emergency, 

4.13. Respondem's deadline to perfom1 the SEP shall be excused or extended if such 

performance is prevented or delayed s.olely by events which constitute a Force Majeure even!. A 

Force Majeure event is defined as any event ariSIng from causes beyond fhe reasonable conlrol 

of Respondent, inclUding its employees, agents, consultants and contractors, or which could not 

be overcome by due diligence and which delays or prevents the perrormance of the SE? within 

the specified lime period, A Force Majeure event does not lndude, infer alia, increa$ed costs of 

performance, changed economk circumstances; changed hlbnr relations, normal precipitation or 

climate events, changed clrcumsaances arising out of the Si!fle, lease or other transfer Or 

conveyance of title Of' ownership or possession of a site, Of failure to obtain federal, SUHe or local 

,4.14. The cost to Respondent of implementing the SEP shall be nmless thaI! $72,905. 

Respondent shaH include documentarion of 1hc expenditures made jn connection with {he SEP as 

part of the SEP Completion Report. 

4,,15. Respondent bereby certifies that, as of the date of this Consent Agreement, 

Respondent is not required to perform or develop the SEP by any federal, state or local law or 

regulation: nor is Respondent required to perform or develop the SEP by any other agreement, 

under a grant, or as injunctive relief in any other case, Respond.ent furtber cerliflCS that It has not 

received, and is not presently negotiating to receive, credit in any oiner enforcement action for 

(he SEP. Furthcmlore, for fede;"al income tax purposes, Respondem agrees that it will neither 
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capitalize into inventory or basis nor dedtlct any costs ol,",expeoditures incurred in performing [he 

SEP 

4.16. Respondent shall submit a SEP Completion Report to EPA within 90 days of the 

Effective Dale of the CAFO. The SEP Completion Report shall contain the following 

information: 

(a) 	 A des.cnpliol1 of the SEP as implemented; 

(b) hernil.ed costs, dOCdmented by copies of purchase orden) and receipts or 

cancelled checks; 

(c) 	 Certification that the SEP has been fully implemented pursuant to the 

<. 
provisions of this CAFO; 

(d) A description of any operating problems encountered and the solutions 

thereto; and 

(e) 	 A description of the environmental and public health benefits resuhlng 

from 	Implementation of the SEP, 

4.17" Respondent agrees that failure io implement the SEP andlor submil [he SEP 

Completion Report required by Paragraph 4. 16, shaH be deemed a violahon of this CAPO, and 

Respondent shaH become liable for stipulated penalties pursuant to this CAPO. 

4. i8. Cnie:;;:s otherwise instructed in writing by EPA. Respondent shall submit alJ 

notices and reports required by this CAFO by first class mail, ovc-might mail, or hand delivery 

to; 
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Suzanne' Powers 
C.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Region lO 
Washington Operations Office 
300 Desmond Drive SE, Suite 102 
Lacey, WA 98503 

4.19. Respondenr agrees that EPA may inspoct Respondent's records related to the SEP 

at any re:1sonable time tn order to confirm that the SEP is being undertaken in conformity v/itl! 

the represcotations made herein, 

4.20 Respondent shaH maintain legible copies of documentation of the underlying data 

for documents or reports submitted to EPA pursuant to this CAFO until the SEP Completion 

Report is accepred pursuant to Paragt'aph 4.21 , and ResIf'ndern shaH provide the docllmenution 

of any such underlying data to EPA within i5 days of a written request for such Informatior.. In 

all documents or reports including, without limitation, the SEP Completion Report submitted to 

EPA pursuant:o this CAPO, Respondent shall, by a ~orporate officer, sign and certify under 

penaHy of law that the information contained in such document or report is true, accurate and not 

rn.:sleading by signing the following statement: 

1 certify under penalty of law that I have examined and am familiar with the information 
submJued in this document and all attachments and that, briscd on my inquiry ofthosc. 
individuals immediateiy responsible for Obtaining the information, 1 believe {hat {he 
information is true, accumle and complete. I am aware that Ihere are Significant penalties 
for submilting false information, mcluding the possibility of fines and imprisonment. 

4,21. FoHowing receipt of the SEP Completion Re.port described in Paragraph 4. 16, 

EPA will do one of the following, (D accept the Report; (ii) reject the Report, notify Respondent 

b writing of deficiencies in the Report and provide Respor;dent an additional 30 days in which to 
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correct any deficiencies, or (iii) reject 1h~ Report and seek s!ipuluted penalties in accordance ,,::tb 

ParagrJph 4.23. 

4.22, In the event [hat the SEP lS not completed as contemplated by this CAFO, and {his 

faUure was not caused sOlely by everHs which constitute a Force Majeure as defined by 

Paragraph 4.13, then stipulated penalties shall be due and payable by Respondent to EPA in 

accordance with Paragraph 4.23. SChedules herel!) may be extended based upon mutual written 

;:tgreement of the plH1ies. 

423. In th<: even( that Respondent fails to comply with any of the ten'lls or provisions 

of this CAFO re;ating to the performance of the SEP described above and/or to the extent that 

the actual expenditures for the SEP do not equal or excee(j·the cost of the SEP described in this 

CAFO, Re'>pondem shaH be liable for stipulated penaltie~" according to the provisions ,>et forth 

below: 

(i) If the SEP is not satisfactorily completed pursuant to this CAFO, Respondent 

shall pay a stipulated penalty to the United States in the amount of $72,905, tess the amOl,lnt 

actually expended, 

(ii) Por failure to submit the SEP Completion Report as required by Paragraph 

4.16, Respondent shall pay ii stipulated penalty in the amoum $100 for each day after the reporl 

is due untillhe report is received by EPA, not 10 exceed $2,500. 

4.24. Stipulated penalties under Paragraph 4,23 shal! begin to accrue on the day after 

perfO!TI1anCe is due, and shall continue to accrue through the final day of satisfactory cOl11ple!ion 

of the activity, subject to the maximum set forth in Paragraph 4.23(ii), 
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4.25. Respondent shall pay stip,ulaled penalties within 15 days of receipt of a written 

demand by EPA for such penalties. Payment shall be in accordance with the provisions of 

Paragraph 4.8. Interest and late charges shall be paid as specified in Paragraph 4 . 11 . 

4.26. Except as provided in Paragraph 4. 30, nothing in the CAFO shall be const rued as 

prohibiting, altering or in any way limiting the abil ity of EPA to seek any other remedies or 

sanctions available by vi rtue of Respondent 's violation of thi s agreement or of the statutes and 

regulalions upon which thi s agreement is based. or for Respondent's viola tion of any applicable 

provision of law. 

4.27. Any public statement, oraJ or written, in prinl , film or other media made by 

Respondent making reference 10 the SEP shall include the4"ollowing language: "This project 

was undertaken in connection with the seltlement of an administrative enforcement action taken 

by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency under the Emergency Planning and Conununjry 

Right-to-Know Act and the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and 

Liabilit y Act." 

4.28. This CAFO shall not reli eve Respondent of its Obligation to comply Wi lh all 

applicable provisions of federal, state or local Jaw, nor shall it be construed to be a ruling on, or 

delermination of, any issue relaled to any federal, state or local permit. nor shall it be construed 

to constitule EPA approval of the equipment or technology purchased by Respondent in 

connection wilh the SEP under the terms of thi s CAFO, 
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4,29< Respondent represents thrtl ~1 is duly autborized to execute thts CAPO and that the 

pal1y signlng this CAFO on its behalf is duly -fimhorized to hind Respondent to rhe terms of this 

CAFO. 

4.::.m, Compliance with aB the terms and conditions of this CAFO shall result in full 

settlement and satisfaclion of all claims for penalties aJ!eged In Section llL 

STIPULATED AND AGREED: 

FOR DYNO 0:0BEL, INC. 

Signalure ~ft~-
8;hJI' £.1.[ C> f((?,.Print Name: 

Title: vi l'1:1!'f'7UJv~ ()ft. Dated. -Wfif, I_~ 

FOR U.S. ENVIRONME'ITAL PROTECTION AGEl\CY 
REGION to 

award J. Ko 'l 

Director, O· e of Compliance and Enforcemem 
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V. ' PINAL ORDER 

5.1. The lenns of the foregoing Consent Agreement are hereby rati fied and 

incorporated by reference into this Final Order. Respondent is hereby ordered to comply with 

the terms of settlement contained in the Consent Agreement. 

5.2. This CAFO constitutes a settlement by EPA of all claims for civi l penalties 

pursuant to EPCRA and CERCLA for the panicular violations alleged in Pan III. In accordance 

with 40 CFR. § 22.31 (a). nothing in this CAFO shall affect the right of EPA or the United 

States to pursue appropriate injunctive or Olher equitable relief or crilTlinal sanctions for any 

violations of law. This CAFO does nol waive, extinguish or otherwise affect Respondent'S 
<. 

obligations to comply with a ll applicable provisions of the Act and regulations issued thereunder. 

This Final Order shall become effective upon filing. 

. 7- c- cr;;- "" SO ORDERED this L day of ~ .2009. 

Thomas M. Jahnke 
Regional Judicial Officer 
U.S. Environmenlal Protection Agency 
Region 10 
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Appendix A 

Dyno Nobel, Inc . will install an ammonia monitoring system for use in identifying releases as 
they may occur, and will also provide four laptops' to Columbia River Fire and Rescue for use in 
ils emergency vehicles. as provided below: 

Wireless Monitoring System 

Wireless Sensors 

Relief Valve ID 
RV-659 
RV-660 
RV-655 
RV-653 A 
RV-6009 
RV-6011 
RV-704 
RV -225 
RV -226 
RV-222 B 
RV -22IC 
RV-222C 
RV-22IB 
RV-22 0E 
RV -220F 
RV-227E 
RV-227 F 
RV -229 
RV-674A 
RV -674B 
RV-674C 
RV-652A 
RV-652 B 
RV -652C 
RV-656 
RV-658 
RV-668A 
RV-668B 
RV-669 
RV-672 
RV-675 
RV-6542 

Total 

Associa ted Vessel 
C-65\ First Absorber 
C-652 Second Absorber 
V-678 First Flash Separator 
V -654 Second Flash Separator 
V-6IS Ammonia Let Down Drum 
E-623 Ammonia Condenser 
E· 700 Ammonia Vaporizer 
V-203 Ammonia Storage Sphere 
V·203 Ammonia Storage Sphere 
V-204 Ammonia Storage Sphere 
V-204 Ammonia Storage Sphere 
V·205 Ammonia Storage Sphere 
V-20S Ammonia Storage Sphere 
Refrigerant Ammonia Condenser 
Refrigerant Ammonia Condenser 
Discharge Ammonia 
Discharge Ammonia 
Refrigerant Skid Ammonia Compression Suction 
Carbamate Pump (Suction) 
Carbamate Pump (Suction) 
Carbamate Pump (Suction) 
Carbamate Pump (Discharge) 
Carbamate Pump (Discharge) 
Carbamate Pump (Discharge) 
I " Decomposer Separator 
2011 Decomposer Separator 
S. Ammonia Feed Pump (Suction) 
N. Ammonia Feed Pump (Suction) 
Inlet (liquid) to Ammonia Storage Tank 
Inlet (s hell ) to Ammonia Condenser 
Tube Side Ammonia Subcooler 
NH3 line rrom NH3 Storage Tank 10 AN Unil 

Additional Items neededfor Installation 

(I) Base Sialion 
( I) Anlennae 
Cabl;ng for Modbus 10 DCS 
Miscellaneous Conduit for Hardware 

Cost 
$995 
S995 
$995 
$995 
$995 
$995 
$995 
$995 
$995 
$995 
$995 
$995 
$995 
$995 
$995 
$995 
$995 
$995 
$995 
$995 
$995 
$995 
$995 
$995 
$995 
$995 
$995 
$995 
$995 
$995 
$995 
$995 

$30,845 

$ 1400 
$695 
$25 
$120 



Des Programming for Hardware (-40 hours x $2(0) $8000 

Total ., . $1024 

Rupture DlSC System for the Ammonia Storage Spheres (App.endix 8) 

(6) Rupture Discs $4,075 
(6) Rupture Disc Holders $1 1,605 

Total $15,680 

Computer Equipment for Columbia River Fire and Rescue (Appendix C) 

(4) Laptops for CRFR Emergency Response Vehicles $161 40 

Total $72,905 



· , 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

TIle undersigned certifies that the original of the attached CONSENT AGREEMENT 
AND FINAL ORDER in In tbe Matter of: DYNO NOBEL, ll'c., DOCKET NO,: EPCRA· 
10-2009·0205 was filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk on September 4, 2009. 

On September 4. 2009 the undersigned certi oes that a true and correct copy of the 
document was delivered to: 

Stephanie Mairs, Esquire 

US Environmental Protection Agency 

1200 Sixth Avenue, ORC-IS8 

Suite 900 

Sealtle, WA 98101 


, 
Further, the undersigned certifies that a true and correct copy of the aforementioned 

document was placed m the United States maii certified/return receipt on September 41 2009, to: 

Dyno Nohle, Inc. 

Philip G. Morrow 

63 149 ColumbIa River Highway 

Deer Island, OR 97054-9401 


DATED this 4'" day of September 2009. 

:<"~:.::::c••~"-"".,.,,,,_," <".:.. ]7..... ._ 
Carel Konnedy 
Regional Hearing Clerk 
EPA Region 10 


